
Parkside  Station Approach  Burton Street  Melton Mowbray  Leicestershire  LE13 1GH
01664 502502 * contactus@melton.gov.uk * www.melton.gov.uk * @MeltonBC

Agenda Rural Capital of Food

Meeting name Licensing Sub-Committee
Date Monday, 8 July 2019
Start time 10.00 am
Venue Parkside, Station Approach, Burton Street, 

Melton Mowbray, Leics, LE13 1GH
Other information This meeting is open to the public

Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee are invited to attend the above 
meeting to consider the following items of business.

Edd de Coverly
Chief Executive

Membership

Councillors S. Lumley P. Posnett
D. Pritchett M. Steadman

Quorum: 3 Councillors

Meeting enquiries The Licensing Team
Email licensing@melton.gov.uk
Agenda despatched Friday, 28 June 2019

Public Document Pack



Page 2 of 2

No. Item Page No.

1.  ELECTION OF A CHAIR

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

3.  DECLARATION OF INTEREST 1 - 2

4.  LICENSING ACT 2003 - NEW PREMISES APPLICATION - 
TEAMWORK'S KARTING, LANGAR AIRFIELD, HARBY ROAD, 
LANGAR, NG13 9HY

3 - 248



Advice on Members’ Interests
PERSONAL AND NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS
If the issue being discussed affects you, your family or a close associate more than other 
people in the area, you have a personal and non-pecuniary interest.  You also have a personal  
interest if the issue relates to an interest you must register under paragraph 9 of the Members’ 
Code of Conduct.

You must state that you have a personal and non-pecuniary interest and the nature of 
your interest.  You may stay, take part and vote in the meeting.

PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS
If a member of the public, who knows all the relevant facts, would view your personal interest in 
the issue being discussed to be so great that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest and it affects your or the other person or bodies’ financial position or relates to any 
approval, consent, licence, permission or registration then you must state that you have a 
pecuniary interest, the nature of the interest and you must leave the room*.  You must not 
seek improperly to influence a decision on that matter unless you have previously obtained a 
dispensation from the Authority’s Governance Committee.  

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND OTHER INTERESTS
If you are present at any meeting of the Council and you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest in any matter to be considered or being considered at the meeting, if the interest 
is not already registered, you must disclose the interest to the meeting.  You must not 
participate in the discussion or the vote and you must leave the room.

You may not attend a meeting or stay in the room as either an Observer Councillor or *Ward 
Councillor or as a member of the public if you have a pecuniary or disclosable pecuniary 
interest*.  

BIAS 
If you have been involved in an issue in such a manner or to such an extent that the public are 
likely to perceive you to be biased in your judgement of the public interest (bias) then you 
should not take part in the decision-making process; you should leave the room.  You should 
state that your position in this matter prohibits you from taking part.  You may request 
permission of the Chair to address the meeting prior to leaving the room.  The Chair will need to 
assess whether you have a useful contribution to make or whether complying with this request 
would prejudice the proceedings.  A personal, pecuniary or disclosable pecuniary interest will 
take precedence over bias. 

In each case above, you should make your declaration at the beginning of the meeting or as 
soon as you are aware of the issue being discussed.*

*There are some exceptions – please refer to paragraphs 13(2) and 13(3) of the Code of 
Conduct

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING ACT 2003: APPLICATION FOR PREMISES LICENCE

SET IT OFF LIMITED, TEAMWORK’S KARTING, LANGAR AIRFIELD, HARBY ROAD, 
LANGAR NG13 9HY

1.0 Summary:
1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out the background to an application for a new 

premises licence in respect of an annual Music festival under the Licensing Act 
2003, and request the Sub-Committee make a determination following receipt of 
relevant representations during the statutory consultation period.

2.0 Recommendations
2.1 It is recommended that the Sub-Committee determine this application for a 

Premises Licence having regard to all the information provided by the 
applicant, the representations received and taking into account the 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and any associated guidance.

3.0 Report Detail
3.1 On 11th April 2019 an application for a new premises licence from Set It Off 

Limited, for a Music Festival for up to 9.999 people at Teamwork’s karting, Langar 
Airfield, Harby Road, Langar NG13 9HY was submitted to Melton Borough 
Council with the required fee.  The original application was served upon the 
responsible authorities (Appendix A). The application was accompanied by an 
Event Management Plan (Appendix B) and site plan (Appendix B19 revised 
plan received on 28.06.19). 

3.2

3.3

The Applicant seeks to host a music festival on a Saturday night, the first being 
on 26th November 2019 with the intention of it being an annual event.  
Consultation took place on 11th May 2019 and was further extended due to 
insufficient ‘Blue Notice’ signage not complying to the regulations to cease on 30th 
May 2019. 

During this period, 10 representations were received by Melton Borough Council 
(Appendix D).  Representations were received from:

D1 – Leicestershire Police
D1(a) Leicestershire Police – Officer statement (received 14.06.19)

Licensing 
Sub-Committee 
Date 8th JULY 2019

Report of:
Assistant Director for Strategic 
Planning and Regulatory 
Services

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

D1(b) Leicestershire Police – Photographs (received 14.06.19)
D2 – Nottinghamshire Fire & Rescue
D3 – Melton Borough Council Environmental Health
D4 – Member of the public
D5 –Member of the public
D6 – Member of the public
D7 – Member of the public
D8 – Member of the public
D9 – Member of the public
D10 – Nottingham County Council & Leicestershire County Council Highways

A Licensing Sub-committee meeting was initially scheduled for 19th June 2019 but 
was adjourned following a request from the Applicant’s solicitor for a short 
adjournment of 3 weeks.  The adjournment was granted in accordance with the 
legislation.

Additional information to support the representation submitted by the police was 
received on 14th June 2019 and served on the applicant’s solicitor on 26th June 
2019.  This is included at Appendix D1(a) and D1(b) of this report.

Additional information to support the application was received from the 
Applicant’s Solicitors on 28th June 2019 and is contained in Appendix B

A summary of the points raised in the representations received have been 
provided in section 3.10 of this report.

The Legislation:

The Licensing Act 2003 states:

Where relevant representations are made, the authority must— 
(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and  

each person who has made such representations agree that a hearing 
is unnecessary

The Act contains four Licensing Objectives which underpin Licensing Act 
considerations and they must be the overriding consideration in any decisions 
that are made in relation to this licensing application, namely:

• Promotion of Public Safety
• Prevention of Crime & Disorder
• Prevention of Public Nuisance
• Protection of Children from Harm

The Representations:

The risks identified by the representations are summarised below however the 
Sub-Committee should ensure all representations are considered in detail.

Page 4



Prevention of Public nuisance

 Music - especially low base being heard by local residents over a 12 hour 
period, in this rural setting.

 Traffic – extra traffic through a village which has busy roads. 

 Litter – both on the site and the roads leading in, after the event

 ASB from people entering the village following the event

 Crowding at the collection/drop off points

 Abandoned cars from those who chance showing up on the day

 Is camping ruled out entirely

Public safety

 Previous company (Detonate UK Ltd)  with same directors - history of similar 
event being shut down due to crowd crushing incident

 Single entry/egress to site – congestion and designated blue route needed

 Busy road leading to site – concerns of people walking this road and cars 
being abandoned along the road

 Increased traffic – safety concerns – people walking the busy road once 
leaving the site

 No parking yet secured for site- for customers, vendors, organisers, 
performers etc.

 Transportation to and from the site & car parking – bus routes need confirming 
including number of coaches and drop off/collection point – current suggested 
numbers may take too long to clear site, leading to unrest.

 Safety of bus drivers needs considering.

 Dispersal once attendees return to Nottingham

 Large site – ensuring this is secured to prevent extra attendees and no entry 
to those wishing to commit crime.

Page 5



3.11

 Environmental Health  can not fully comment yet on Health and Safety due to 
insufficient information currently available including - Construction design and 
management crowd management, security, managing an incident, sign off 
checks, traffic management including blue light ( emergency vehicle) routes 
on to the site has not been completed

 An appropriate safe drinking water supply at suitable locations around the site 
must be provided.

 Muster points need confirming in the event of an emergency

 Potential pyrotechnics on site and LPG

Prevention of Crime & Disorder

 Policing – sufficient numbers needed on the site and nearby villages as well 
as at collection/drop off site

 Concerns around ASB, fighting and disorder

 Crowd control – avoid repeat of crushing 

Protect Children from Harm

 Underage drinking and drugs – spreading into local villages

 Road safety in the area during the event – buses in the villages.

 no phone signal in rural area at times

The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy:

The Sub-Committee’s should note that Melton Borough Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy at 2.2, 2.3, 2.4 and 2.5 states:

‘The Licensing Objectives

2.2 The Licensing Authority will carry out its functions with a view to promoting the 
licensing objectives.  The licensing objectives, which carry equal importance, are:

 Public Safety;
 The prevention of crime disorder; 
 The prevention public nuisance; and 
 The protection of children from harm (including child sexual exploitation)

Page 6



3.12

3.12

3.13

3.14

‘Balance

2.3 The Licensing Authority will also seek to achieve a balance between 
leisure/entertainment and the needs of residents and other businesses for an 
acceptable environment and quality of life.

2.4 This Policy will not undermine the right of any individual to apply for a variety 
of permissions and to have any such application considered on its individual 
merits.  Nor will it override the right of any person to make representations on an 
application or seek a review of a licence where provision has been made for them 
to do so in the Licensing Act 2003.

Extent of Control 

2.5 Licensing is about the control of premises and places being used for 
licensable activities. The conditions attached to various authorisations are 
focused on relevant matters that are within the control of the licence holders and 
others with relevant authorisations. Licensing law is not a mechanism for the 
general control of anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are beyond the 
control of the individual club or business holding the licence, certificate or 
authorisation concerned. However, the Licensing Authority expects every holder 
of a licence, certificate or authorisation to be responsible for minimising the 
impact of the activities and anti-social behaviour by their patrons within the 
immediate vicinity of their premises and will require licence holders to 
demonstrate that they have taken appropriate action.’

Whilst some relevant parts have been drawn to the attention of the sub-
committee the policy should be considered as a whole and the sub-committee 
may find other parts that are equally relevant. 

The Licensing Act Guidance:

When making a determination the Sub-Committee should also consider the Home 
Office revised guidance issued under s.182 Licensing Act 2003 dated April 2018. 

4.0 Consultation and Feedback 
4.1 The original application consultation end date was extended to 30th May 2019 due 

to insufficient ‘blue notices’ being placed on the along the external perimeter of 
the premises abutting any Highway.

4.2 During the consultation period, 10 representations were received by Melton 
Borough Council (Appendix D1-D10). A summary of the points raised in the 
representation has been made in section 3.10 of this report.

4.3 Following the request for an adjournment, additional information was provided by 
the Police on 14th June 2019 and served on the Applicant’s solicitor on 26th June 
2019.

4.4 Additional information was provided by the Applicant on 28th June 2019 and is 
included with this report.

Page 7



5.0 Next Steps
5.1 Once a decision is made by the Sub-Committee, all parties will be notified of the 

decision within 5 working days. 

5.2 The Sub-Committee should note that the applicant does have the right of appeal 
within 21 days of notification of the decision  

6.0 Financial Implications
6.1 There are no financial or other resource implications.

7.0 Legal and Governance Implications:
7.1 The initial hearing scheduled for 19th June 2019 was adjourned following a 

request from the applicant pursuant to section 11 & 12 of The Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005 as it was deemed necessary in the public interest.  

72 A further hearing was scheduled on 8th July 2019 and all parties were required to 
submit any additional information to be considered at the hearing by noon on 28th 
June 2019.

7.3 Any party involved in the process may appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 
days of the date of the decision notice.

8.0 Equality and Safeguarding Implications:
8.1 There are not equality implications arising from this report. 

8.2 The safeguarding implications are outlined in the body of this report. 

9.0 Community Safety Implications:
9.1 The Community Safety implications are detailed in the body of the report and 

associated appendices.

10.0 Other Implications
10.1 None

11.0 Risk & Mitigation:

11.1 A Very High

B High

L
I
K
E
L
I

C Significant 1,3 2

Page 8



D Low

E Very Low

H
O
O
D

F Almost
Impossible

Negligible
1

Marginal
2

Critical
3

Catastrophic
4

                IMPACT
Risk 
No

Risk Description

1 Noise complaints 
2 Public Safety - Safety of attendees- overcrowding and access for 

blue light services in the event of an emergency
3 Prevention of Crime and Disorder - Policing – increase in crime 

and ASB, 

Background Papers:
Statement of Licencing Policy 
Revised guidelines under S 182 Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018)

Appendices
Appendix A – Application Form
Appendix B – Event Management Plan (with sub appendices B1, B3, B4, B5, B6, 
B12, B13, B15, B16, B18, B19, B20, B21)
Appendix C – Removed – updated site plan provided on 28.06.19 re-labelled B19
Appendix D – Representations (D1 – D10)

Report Timeline:
Director Approval : 28/6/2019

Date of Review to make public (Exempt Reports only)
N/A

Report Author & Job Title
Jim Worley – Assistant Director for Strategic Planning and Regulatory Services

: 01664 502502  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



REDACTED

Page 18



REDACTED

Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



APPENDIX B

Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



APPENDIX B1

Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B3

Page 73



Page 74



APPENDIX B4

Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



APPENDIX B5

Page 87



Page 88



APPENDIX B6

Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



Event Medical Plan 
Saturday 26th October 2019

proeventmedical.com 

hello@proeventmedical.com

APPENDIX B12

Page 115



Event- Detonate Festival (Langar)
Date-  Saturday 26th October 2019

 Location-Teamworks Karting, Langar Airfield, Harby  Rd, Langar, NG13 9HY. 

Description of Event-  One day music event showcasing electronic acts on three amplified stages. 
Event licensed for alcohol from several bars.   No camping. 7,000 PAX

Event Medical Manager

Oliver Krol HCPC Paramedic CertHE IOSH    telephone - 07834 363269

Event Timing

Event Open- 1100
Event Close- 2300

Crowd Profile

Equal split of male/female adults.   Younger demographic targeted.  18-25

Capacity 

At this time the client expects 7,000 people on site, including artists and crew.  300 transient crew/artist. 

Resource Times

Medical staffing required throughout operation hours.  Peak period of entertainment and expected quan-
tity of work Is 1800-2300.

Queing provision

Members of public will be queuing for entry.  The risk assessment for this will be in the master EMP.  
Crowd management to be facilitated by security contractor.  Guests encouraged to arrive earlier than lat-
er. We envisage that there will be steady and gradual egress without rush.  Environmental conditions ie. 
Heat will increase hazard to customers if prolonged queuing occurs.  More ticket, security and steward 
staff should be deployed if very warm weather is anticipated. Medical staff can be re-deployed to offer 
response to queue if required.

Campsites

No camping for this event.  All guests leave after the show.

Other Medical/ First aid posts

One main Medical Treatment Centre provided by our client situated in main arena.  Will be weatherproof 
and minimum size of 6x6m with adequate power and lighting installed.   Staff will offer emergency re-
sponse into arena and stage areas if/when required.  Casualties will be treated on scene and discharged 
or if required recovered back to treatment centre for more complex care needs. 

Clinical waste management

Disposal with our contractor.  Sharps to be disposed of in designated sharps boxes, then stored for formal 
disposal by contractor.  We are licensed waste carriers for this purpose.

Staff Parking

Staff to park in crew parking and make way on foot to treatment centre.   We are planning to keep non 
emergency vehicles to a minimum and try to bring the majority staff in our marked emergency vehicles for 
ease of entry

Welfare/Catering Arrangements for staff

Staff to receive 2 x meals per shift for event.  We will ensure that bottled water is available for medical 
staff.  Staff WC will be available for use within the catering/staff welfare area. 

Page 116



Treatment Documentation

Any Patient contact must be followed up by an entry onto electric event Medical logging system or Pa-
tient Report Form.  This will be conveyed with the patient to hospital or stored securely in line with data 
protection act.  Data will only be divulged at a later stage to the patient themselves or by a government 
agency clearly outlining the nature of their request.  For the purposes of RIDDOR we will keep and inform 
event organisers of personal data for this reason.  This data remains under data protection legislation and 
our property. 

Event Control Log will be opened at event open and continued throughout operational period.  This will 
include occurrence logs and salient information.    
Both logs will be anonymised and sent to in the post-event attachment to our debrief. 

Maintaining Cover

 We will only call upon the statutory Ambulance service for a major incident/hazardous event.  Or indeed 
if we are out-resourced at a time of extreme pressure and we require more Ambulances to convey time 
critical patients.  This decision will only be made by shift supervisor and will be communicated to event 
control team via event coms. 

Major Incident

If we need to alert EMAS to a developing complex incident standby or declaration we will contact EMAS 

control room using 999.  

The mnemonic METHANE will be used.   Major Incident declared/standby, exact location, type of inci-

dent, hazards, access and egress, number of causalities estimate and emergency agencies required.   

Control staff will be aware of this mnemonic.  

Once an ambulance incident officer is on scene we will hand incident command over NHS. We will fall 

into their command structure as a deployable medical resource or as they see fit. 

Clinical Decision Making

All of our Paramedic and Nurse staff are autonomous practitioners. All treatments will be initiated by indi-

vidual basis with overall supervision from registered Clinician.  Any first-aider staff are well trained in their 

skills, they will not exceed their scope of practice and will be closely supervised by a Paramedic or Nurse.

Medical Resources from Pro-Event Medical Ltd

2 x Paramedics 1030-2330 
3 x EMT 1030-2330 
5 x FPOS 1100-2300  
1 x Controller 1030-2330 
2 x Conveyable Ambulance 
Welfare function is present but provided by a different Company 
10 operational staff in total for the duration of the event.  This is robust and appropriate staffing and skill 
set for this event using our 7 years of experience looking after these shows. 

Historical Data

Pro-Event Medical has been contracted to provide its services on this show for seven years.  In this time 
we have has zero impact on the East Midland Ambulance Service and referred only eight patients to NHS 
hospitals.  Our primary function is to provide high level Clinical support and self/manage patients on-site 
to minimise if not eliminate impact on statutory services.   We are presented with an average of 50-70 
walk up cases per twelve hour event and approximately 15 responses within the arena area.  We are 
confident that this multidisciplinary team provided robust and appropriate cover the event and according 
to the information we have been given by the Production teams. 

Page 117



Author - Oliver Krol HCPC Paramedic  CertHE   IOSH
Date of writing - Friday 7th February  2019

Pre Notified Medical Conditions

Unexpected although we can provide a safe and private space for medication administration. 

Event Liaison Team

There will be an ELT team for this event.  We anticipate our Medical supervisor working from Treatment 

Centre with Medical Dispatcher working in ELT to coordinate medical assets to incidents.  

Transportation of Patients

We will have two Ambulance on site which can convey to hospital.   We will utilise all other transport op-

tions when appropriate such as self presenting, taxi's and or transport via friend/family.

Vehicle Management 

A clear emergency vehicle access/egress route is decided by organisers and health and safety team.  On-
site movement of vehicles will be restricted to emergency response only.

Medical Emergency Procedure 

1. Medical Dispatcher to get exact location from informant. 2. Dispatcher will task specific Response 

teams to make an attendance and provide initial assessment of patient. 3. Clinician sends back a situation 

report to dispatcher as soon as reasonably practicable with Age, Sex, History, Injuries, Complaint and 

probable treatment plan. 4. Dispatcher to communicate between treatment centre, response teams and 

security teams to support the attending Clinicians provide their pathway.  Communications to be on one 

operational channel with allocated call signs. The Event director will be contact at earliest possible time if 

situation appears protracted, life-threatening, as a result of criminal activities or an immediate health and 

safety risk. If additional medical support (air ambulance, Ops commander NHS) is required then this will 

initiated by the shift supervisor. They will inform festival director and security control of their decision, and 

immediate action plan. For example this could mean security to assist movement of ambulances or air-

craft landing zone 20x20m cleared of people. Any decision to initiate these resources will be made by 
event control team taking into consideration the circumstances we are presented with at the time the 

required treatments and time frames for receiving these. It is accepted that there may be calls to the 

emergency services from third parties. If an unexpected response arrives this must be treated seriously 

and swiftly. Just because we didn't call doesn't mean there isn't an undeclared emergency on site.  In this 

instance we would make contact with NHS control room to obtain call data and co-respond in view of re-

leasing an NHS crew.

Ambulance Service Resources

Event Control telephone numbers to be exchanged with Ambulance Emergency Operations Centre and 
Operational Management/Resilience NILO at East Midlands Ambulance Service.

Hopitals

Nearest Hospital is:  Queens Medical Centre 
Derby Road 
Nottingham 
NG7 2UH 

0115 924 9924 

Communications

On site communications to be via hand-held two way radios.  These are to be booked and provided by 
the client.  We require seven hand held radios for this event and a separate dedicated medical channel.  
It is critical that these are on same operating system as security, production and the rest of the Medical 
Team.  There must also be capability for exchange of batteries.   

Back up coms will be mobile phones.  There is good coverage on all site on all common networks. 

Page 118



APPENDIX B13

Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



P
age 136



P
age 137



P
age 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B15

Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B16

Page 171



Page 172



APPENDIX B18

Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B19

P
age 181



P
age 182



APPENDIX B20

Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



APPENDIX B21

P
age 189



P
age 190



P
age 191



P
age 192



P
age 193



P
age 194



P
age 195



P
age 196



P
age 197



P
age 198



P
age 199



P
age 200



P
age 201



P
age 202



P
age 203



P
age 204



P
age 205



P
age 206



P
age 207



P
age 208



P
age 209



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Leicestershire Police 
 
Licensing Act 2003 –  
Representation in respect of New Grant Application – Halloween Festival 
 
Details of person or body making representation 
Your Name: David Braithwaite 
Your Address: Force Licensing Department 

Mansfield House 
74 Belgrave Gate 
LEICESTER 
LE1 3GG 

 
Details of premises representation is about 
  Halloween Festival 
Address of 
premises: 

Langer Airfield, 
Harby Road, 
Notts, 
NG13 9HY 
 
 
 

Application No. 
(if known) 

      

 
Please tick one or more of the licensing objectives that your representation 
relates to: 
Prevention of crime and disorder   
Public Safety  
Prevention of public nuisance  
Protection of children from harm  
 
Please summarise your concerns about this application: 
 
 
I write in my capacity as Deputy Licensing Manager for Leicestershire Police on the authority 
delegated to me by the Chief Constable. 
 
This is an application from Set If Off Limited for a new grant to hold a Halloween Festival (Detonate 
Festival) at Langer Airfield, Nottinghamshire on 26th October 2019.  
 
They plan to provide various forms of entertainment including Drum & Bass, House, and Electro 
Music. 
 
The applicants are providing two separate stages at the location, each of which will be covered by 
large marquee tents. 

Force Licensing Department 
Mansfield House  

74 Belgrave Gate 
Leicester LE1 3GG 

Tel: 101 
 

www.leics.police.uk 
 

APPENDIX D(1)

Page 211



 2 

 
The festival will be aimed mainly at students from the Nottingham area aged between 18 – 23 years 
old. 
 
The location itself is an old airfield which borders both Leicestershire and Nottinghamshire. This is 
now home to various businesses and a parachuting centre.  
 
The airfield itself is serviced by one narrow country road with no street lighting present. 
 
The event is planned to take place on our side of the border on the grounds of Teamworks karting 
who have sublet their grounds to the event company. 
  
Leicestershire police are concerned that the present application fails to promote The Prevention of 
Public Nuisance, Public Safety and the Prevention of Crime And Disorder. 
 
On 20/05/2019 a joint SAG (Safety Advisory Group) meeting was held and the DPS / applicant Kathryn 
Pyer also attended it. 
 
It was at the meeting that the DPS stated that the festival will now be advertised as a secret location 
event (the location will not be revealed until their customers get there) and that the only way to get 
to it will be via the 40-50 buses that they will be providing as part of the whole package. She also 
indicated that there will only be one pick up point in the centre of Nottingham in the region of the 
train station. 
 
The applicant also stated they expect to draw a crowd of up to 7000 people. 
 
During the meeting, various issues were raised, and following this meeting I still have concerns that 
the above stated licensing objectives will still not be met due to the lack of information that was 
provided to us and also the lack of things that have not been secured yet by the organisers / 
applicant. 
 
 
Our representation relate to the following issues. 
 
We have not been provided with the following information 
 

• Transport management plan.  
• Alcohol management plan. 
• A full security operation plan. 
• Emergency evacuation/Incident plan.  
• Noise management plan. 

 
I also have concerns around the following areas. 
 
The Location / venue site 
 

• The organisers have not yet secured a clear ‘Safe Blue Route’ for emergency vehicles to gain 
access the location. This is essential, due to the isolated nature of the venue which is some 
distance (20-30 minutes travelling time) from any of the nearest emergency services, and also 
due to the narrow country road which services the airfield where the festival is planned to 
take place. 

• There is only one entry and exit point which is relatively narrow. This draws concern should 
an incident occur within the vicinity, there will be no other way to access the location 
(especially if they do not secure/provide the Safe Blue Route) 

• The applicant has still to secure an area for parking at the site. If they are not successful, 

Page 212



 3 

where will all of the vendors, staff, artist, performers and any other relevant vehicles park 
(such as emergency vehicles who are either providing support or who may have been called 
there to attend an incident). 

• At present there is also no designated area for the coaches / buses to drop off and pick 
people up. This is very concerning as we do not want the drop off point some distance away 
which then means people having to walk to and from the location, if this was the case it could 
cause problems/safety issues unless they have a clear secure/safe route for their clientele to 
use (the organisers did have a proposed site but this ground does not belong to the karting 
centre plus it may be undergoing development at the time of the festival). 

• The festival location is also surrounded by either open fields or hedgerows/bushes, how will 
they secure such a large area to make it safe for their customers and also prevent people 
from entering to either watch the artist or more importantly to commit crime (this was 
discussed at the SAG meeting but nothing has been put in place yet). 

• We also have concerns about how they will deal with an influx of people who could start 
turning up on the day in vehicles and without tickets (due to word spreading via social 
media). These cars could be parked up either on the road outside the airfield or in and 
around the local villages, both of which will cause congestion and a nuisance to the local 
residents. This could also lead to safety issues should the occupants of these vehicles start to 
walk to the venue along the road.  

 
 
Transportation 
 

• During the SAG meeting the applicant stated that they intend to use between 40-50 
coaches/buses to ferry people from the centre of Nottingham to the festival and then take 
them back there following the event. If this is the case and 7000 people do attend we believe 
that this would not be enough, due to the fact that it will take a very long time to clear the 
site of people, which in turn could lead to unrest and disorder amongst the revellers 
(especially after they have consumed large amounts of alcohol). 

• How will they manage the queues of people who are waiting for the buses, this is especially 
critical at the location they select in Nottingham. There is no mention as to how they will 
control or police this site and contain the crowds of people who will gather there prior to 
boarding the coaches, and more importantly after the event when they get dropped off. 
What dispersal procedures will they have in place, bearing in mind people will be intoxicated 
and then coming into contact with those who are already part of Nottingham’s Night Time 
Economy. How are they going to provide a safe area and also prevent crime and disorder 
from breaking out.   

•  I am also under the impression that no consultation has taken place with Nott’s police about 
this nor have they secured an area for the bus pick up and drop off point.  

• There is no mention of how they will prevent crime and disorder from occurring on the buses 
they will be using, again this is more of a concern after the event. They have a duty of care for 
all of the drivers involved. 

 
Leicestershire Police are concerned that the licensing objectives of Crime & Disorder, Public Safety 
and The Prevention Of Public Nuisance and will not be promoted if this licence is granted. 
 
Whilst not wishing to restrain the discretion of the committee, Leicestershire Police would like this 
application refused due to the grounds outlined above.   
 
David Braithwaite 
Deputy Licensing Manager 
Leicestershire Police 
 
30th May 2019 
 

Page 213



 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 214



Complete 

If Req’d 

GSC Class: Reason: 

Handling Conditions: 

  

  MG11 

Occurrence Ref:     

Signature: Sharon Roscoe PC4364  .......................  Signature witnessed by: ..................................................  
 

October 2018  
 

 

WITNESS STATEMENT 

Criminal Procedure Rules, r. 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9 

URN                

Statement of:  Sharon Roscoe 

Age if under 18:  over 18 (if over 18 insert ‘over 18’) Occupation:  Police Officer  

This statement (consisting of two page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief 
and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated 
in it anything which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true. 

 

Signature:…Sharon Roscoe…………………………….. Date: 14/6/19 

 

I am a serving Police Officer in Leicestershire Police and I am the beat manager for the area known as Melton 
Rural North which covers the area of the proposed event.  On 20

th
 May I attended a Meeting at Phoneix House in 

relation to the music festival known as Detonate/Halloween Festival which is proposed to take place on Saturday 
26

th
 October 2019 at the Langar Karting and Quad Centre.   

I was somewhat surprised to hear about this event taking place at this location, however, went to the meeting 
with an open mind.  My initial reaction to this event was deep concern regarding the road access to and from the 
event and the safety of the attendees.  The access to the Karting Centre is by means of a single gateway off the 
Harby to Langar Lane.  This lane is unlit and is a 60mph road.  From local knowledge this lane is a very fast lane 
with traffic and is the main route from that part of the Vale to Nottingham.  With the anticipated crowd being 7000-
10,000 people, it is my opinion that one access and egress is not sufficient.  I learnt at the meeting that the ticket 
is being sold as a secret location event with people being bussed in.  With social media this will not be secret for 
long.  Being a rural location and on an airfield there are many different ways to access this event be it by road, 
across fields, farm tracks and bridleways.  The whole site would need perimeter fencing and security to prevent 
unauthorised access once the event location is known.  Once the location is known, there is then nothing to stop 
people turning up and parking on the Harby to Langar road or blocking up the village of Harby which will cause 
congestion and likely accidents.  Non ticket holders will still be able to hear the music and potentially hold their 
own party at the side of the road.  Also of concern is how the organisers are going to prevent drink, drugs or 
weapons entering the site?  I would want to see proper searches being a condition of entry but this then delays 
entrance to the event, potentially causing further chaos on the road and entrance. 

My main area of concern is crowd control after the event.  When people are drunk (and/or drugged) and trying to 
find their transport this will be incredibly difficult to manage if there is not sufficient parking of the coaches actually 
on the airfield.  7000-10,000 people wandering around looking for their coach is not ideal and I believe they will 
source alternative transport which will collect them from the main road.  The majority will want to leave at the 
same time and if there are 7000 that will involve 140 coaches minimum.  The proposed shuttle system back to 
Nottingham would not, in my opinion, be acceptable. 

I am lead to believe the event will be held in large marquees on the quad centre site but would not enable all 7000 
to be in them at one time.  The ground is rough and uneven where the quad bikes are and it was my 
understanding that the marquees wouldn’t be erected on the tarmac area.  Given the time of year, this may pose 
a problem especially if there is inclement weather.  Access and egress for festival goers, refreshment sellers etc 
could be a logistical nightmare.  There is no separate access for emergency services and whilst there are other 
routes around the airfield that could be used, it was my understanding that no permission had been granted for 
these routes to be used.  Without confirmed access for a clear and designated blue access, this causes me great 
concern.  Also with regards to the emergency services, Harby is a remote area so response times are longer than 
normal.  As the beat manager for the area, I am aware that the local NHW are concerned. 

APPENDIX D(1)(a)

Page 215



  MG11(CONT) 
    
Continuation of Statement of:……Sharon Roscoe………………………………………………………………. Page 2  

Signature:  Sharon Roscoe  ......................................  Signature witnessed by:  .................................................  
 

  
 

In short I am concerned at the use of this location for such an event based on the remoteness for access to 
emergency services, the security, the access and egress for festival goers and the time of year.  From a public 
safety point of view I do not believe the minimum requirements are met.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 216



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 D

(1
)(

b)

Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 
 Licensing Act 2003 

 
REPRESENTATION FORM  

 
 
Your name/organisation name/name of 
body you represent  

 

Postal and email address 
 
 
 

 

Contact telephone number 
 
Name of the premises you are making a 
representation about 

 

Address of the premises you are  
making a representation about. 
 
 

 
 

 
Your representation must relate to one of the four Licensing Objectives (see note 2) 
Licensing Objective Yes 

Or 
No 

Please detail the evidence supporting your 
representation or the reason for your representation. 
Please use separate sheets if necessary 

To prevent crime and disorder 
 
 
 

  

Public safety 
 
 
 
 

  

To prevent public nuisance 
 
 
 
 

  

To protect children from harm 
 
 
 
 

  

 
Please suggest any conditions that 
could be added to the licence to remedy 
your representation or other 
suggestions you would like the 
Licensing Sub Committee to take into 
account (see note 2). 

 

 
Signed:     Date:    
Please see notes on reverse 
 
 

     

West Bridgford Fire Station.
Loughborough Road,
NG2 7FA.

Langar Airfield - Detonate (Halloween) Festival
Langar Airfield.
Harby Road,
Langar. NG13 9HY.

Yes

Yes - Entry and egress to/from site via single point creating congestion.
- No designated blue light route for site.
- Potential use of pyrotechniques with bulk LPG onsite.
- Traffic congestion with multiple buses at lone drop off point (Single entry/egress)
- Increased potential for Public to walk along unlit country roads increasing the 
possibility of collision with vehicles. (As a result of last two points above).
- Proposed pick up point in City center becoming crowded/congested.

Nottinghamshire Fire and Rescue (SM P. Harley - WM M. Hickling)

- Proposed single pick up point in City centre becoming crowded/congested.
- Proposed single entry/egress route to/from site

28/05/2019

Communications with the airports authority to ensure that they are 
aware that the airfield will be out of commision for a 3 day period.

- Appropriate cordoning around LPG on site and restricted/no use of
  pyrotechnics unless suitable risk assessment is in place.
- Multiple access points with seperate egress points
- Multiple pick up and drop off points
- (Above two points eleviate potential for public walking on highway and
   reduce possible congestion in all areas).

Yes - Proposed single pick up point in City centre becoming crowded/congested.

No

- Pick up and drop off point needs confirming. 
Confirmed bus route, with alternatives in place in the 
event of road closures.

REDACTED

APPENDIX D(2)

Page 227

pharley
Highlight
Pyrotechnics. (Spelling error).

mhicklin
Highlight

mhicklin_1
Highlight

mhicklin_2
Highlight

mhicklin_3
Highlight

mhicklin_4
Highlight

mhicklin_5
Highlight

mhicklin_6
Highlight

mhicklin_7
Highlight
Notification given to CAA for change of use of airfield so that any/all air traffic from nearby airports/airfields are aware?

mhicklin_8
Highlight

mhicklin_9
Highlight

mhicklin_10
Typewritten Text
-Confirmed muster points for public in event of emergency



 

 
 
 

NOTES 
 

 
1. This form must be returned within the statutory period of 28 days from the date 

the application was displayed on the premises of the date given in the public 
notice in a local newspaper or other local publication.  

 
2. These can only relate to the four licensing objectives. 

 
3. If you do make a representation you will be expected to attend a meeting of the 

Licensing Authority’s Committee and any subsequent appeal proceeding.  If you 
do not attend, the Committee will consider any representations that you have 
made. 

 
4. Please return this form when completed to: 

 
The Licensing Officer 
Melton Borough Council 
Parkside 
Station Approach 
Melton Mowbray 
LE13 1GH 
 
 
Tel:  01664 502502 
Email: licensing@melton.gov.uk  

 
 

Page 228



 

 
 

 
 Licensing Act 2003 

 

          REPRESENTATION FORM 
 

 

Your name/organisation name/name of 
body you represent (see note 2) 

Environmental Health  

Organisation name/name of body you 
represent (if appropriate) (see note 2) 

Melton Borough Council 

Postal and email address 
 
 

Parkside, 

Station Approach 

Burton Street 

Melton Mowbray 

LE13 1GH 
 

Contact telephone number REDACTED 

 

Name of the premises you are making a 
representation about 

Set It Off Ltd - Halloween Festival 

Address of the premises you are 
making a representation about. 

Teamworks Karting, Langar Airfield, Harby Road NG13 

9HY 

 
Your representation must relate to one of the four Licensing Objectives (see note 4) 

Licensing Objective Yes 
Or 
No 

Please detail the evidence supporting your 
representation or the reason for your representation. 
Please use separate sheets if necessary 

To prevent crime and disorder 
 
 
 

No  

Public safety 
 
 
 
 

Yes Following a SAG there are a number of Health and Safety 

concerns. 

A completed Event safety Management plan including 

critical appendicies which contain event specific 

information including Construction design and 

management, crowd management, security, managing an 

incident, sign off checks, traffic management including 

blue light ( emergency vehicle) routes on to the site has not 

been completed. Concern was raised at the SAG that there 

is insufficient information currently available to fully 

comment on health and safety. 

An appropriate safe drinking water supply at suitable 

locations around the site must be provided. 
To prevent public nuisance 
 
 
 
 

Yes To ensure that noise from amplified music does not 

unreasonably and adversely impact on residential amenity 

contrary to the licensing objective – the prevention of 

public nuisance.   

 

I refer to the 1995 CIEH CoP on Environmental Noise 

Control at concerts which seek to provide guidance on 

tolerable levels of noise exposure from music concerts / 

festivals. 

APPENDIX D(3)

Page 229



 

    

Noise control levels have been derived based upon the 

guidance.  The noise control levels will not provide a 

standard of inaudibility at noise sensitive receivers. 
To protect children from harm 
 
 
 
 

No  

 

Please suggest any conditions that 
could be added to the licence to remedy 
your representation or other 
suggestions you would like the 
Licensing Sub Committee to take into 
account (see note 3). 

1. A completed Event Safety Management Plan including 

appendices must be completed. This must include:- 

  i)A traffic management plan including safe access and 

egress onto site, suitable protected blue light access route 

onto the site, appropriate parking provision and vehicle 

turning, suitable pick up and drop off points, an end of 

event egress plan for ticket holders. 

ii) A crowd management plan including maximum 

numbers for the event, maximum safe capacity for each 

marquee, crowd flow including emergency egress and 

evacuation. 

iii) Confirmation of stewarding numbers and locations, 

training, communications on site. 

iv) Full risk assessments and load bearing/ wind  loading  

for all structures and barriers to be completed including on 

site wind speed monitoring and confirmation of structure 

limits. 

v) Full risk assessments including storage, location of 

display, safe ignition, wind speeds, fall out zones and 

crowd safety for any pyrotechnics on site. 

vi) Full risk assessments for all other hazards on site 

including any LPG, generators, electrics, unsafe areas, 

other attractions including any inflatables, rides, caterers, 

other concessions. 

vii) Emergency contingency plans including appropriate 

first aid provision. 

viii) A fire risk assessment.  

This should be agreed with the SAG group well in advance 

of the event. 

 

1. The control limits set at the mixer position shall be 

managed to ensure that the Music Noise Level will be 

compliant with the requirements set out in table 1 of the 

1995 CIEH CoP on Environmental Noise Control (or 

succedent guidance if withdrawn) at concerts throughout 

the duration of any rehearsal, sound check, concert or 

event. 

 

2. The licence holder shall give notice to the Local 

Authority and to the Parish Council Clerk(s) of the date of 

the event three months prior to the event being held.  

 

3. Where the Local Authority has received notice of 

an event, a noise management plan shall be submitted to 

Environmental Health at least six weeks prior to the event 

taking place.  The plan shall identify the location, hours of 

operation, the direction of the sound system and maximum 

Page 230



 

sound energy output of all the significant noise sources 

proposed for the event.  The strategy shall detail the 

proposed noise attenuation mechanisms to be employed 

during the event, the location of the noise monitoring 

points and the procedure for ensuring that the noise control 

levels set at noise sensitive locations are complied with.  

The noise management plan shall be agreed with 

Environmental Health prior to the event taking place.  

 

4. The Event Organiser shall ensure that all persons 

(including individual sound engineers) involved with the 

sound system are informed of the music control limits and 

that any instructions from the Responsible Authority for 

Environmental Health regarding noise levels are complied 

with. 

 

5.        Unrestricted access to the front of house position 

and backstage areas shall be allowed at all times to the 

Responsible Authority for Environmental Health for the 

purpose of sound level measurements, communications 

with the nominated noise consultant / sound engineer and 

monitoring licence conditions. 

 

6. A telephone hotline shall be provided and will be 

staffed throughout the duration of the event.  Calls to the 

hotline number shall be logged.  This is to include the 

name and number of the caller, their location (when 

identified), a brief description of the issue and subsequent 

action to deal with the complaint issue.  The log is also to 

include unidentified callers and such calls shall be acted 

upon.  The log will be available for inspection by the Local 

Authority during the event and a final copy provided to 

them within a week after the event.     
  

 

Signed: Joanne Belcher and David Martschenko, Environmental Health Date:   21st May 2019 

Please see notes on reverse 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 231



 

 
NOTES 

 
 

1. This form must be returned within the statutory period of 28 days from the date 
the application was displayed on the premises of the date given in the public 
notice in a local newspaper or other local publication.  

 
2. These can only relate to the four licensing objectives. 

 
3. If you do make a representation you will be expected to attend a meeting of the 

Licensing Authority’s Committee and any subsequent appeal proceeding.  If you 
do not attend, the Committee will consider any representations that you have 
made. 

 
4. Please return this form when completed to: 

 
The Licensing Officer 
Parkside 
Station Approach 
Melton Mowbray 
LE13 1GH 
 
 
Tel:  01664 502502 
Fax: 01664 565656 
Email: licensing@melton.gov.uk  

Page 232

mailto:licensing@melton.gov.uk


REDACTED

REDACTED

REDACTED

APPENDIX D(4)

Page 233



This page is intentionally left blank



REDACTED

REDACTED

APPENDIX D(5)

Page 235



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D(6)

Page 237



Page 238



REDACTED

Page 239



Page 240



REDACTED

REDACTED

REDACTED

APPENDIX D(7)

Page 241



This page is intentionally left blank



REDACTED

REDACTED

REDACTED

APPENDIX D(8)

Page 243



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D(9)

REDACTED

Page 245



This page is intentionally left blank



Heath Phillips 

Via East Midlands Limited 

Representation continuation form. 

Reason for Representation: Public Safety 

The event is gearing up for 7000 visitors, but I am concerned about the size of the 

venue and the amount of cover available in the event of bad weather or cold (Event 

is in October) The organisers had a similar problem at a previous event at this time 

of the year. 

I am concerned about the amount of people coming to the site, they are to be bused 

in but there is very little room on site to accept and turn around buses. The intention 

is to have 40 to 60 coaches/buses shuttling people in, but as it takes a set amount of 

time to empty a bus and there is not much room on site, and there is nowhere local 

for buses to wait I am concerned that the buses might end up waiting on the road 

outside the venue. This road is national speed limit and only a single carriageway 

road. 

If there is any emergency at this site that requires an evacuation there is no place to 

go other than out onto the national speed limit road that has no footways. 

The entrance is very narrow and there is only one into the site currently. This will 

cause difficulties with buses coming in and out all the time at the start and end of the 

day and less so during the day when a reduced bus service is in operation. Due to 

the one entrance there are issues with emergency vehicles not having a clear sterile 

route. 

People may use social media to encourage friend to come to the site in their private 

vehicles and there is no parking possible for them, which could end up with vehicles 

being parked on the road, though the organisers have stated that if you do not have 

a ticket and you haven’t come on the bus you will not get in, but they would still have 

tried to enter to be turned away and as mentioned above the entrance is very narrow 

(One vehicle in and one out at a time especially buses which could be an issue) 

During the exit phase there will be a need to move everyone off site who is left, this 

will not be a quick operation due to the buses having to go to the centre of 

Nottingham to drop people off. There may well be people fed up of waiting calling 

friends and family to come and get them, but as the site is restricted to Buses only 

they will have to pick up on an unlit road (There was talk about lighting the road) that 

is subject to a national speed limit that is also having 40 to 60 buses operating on it. 

APPENDIX D(10)

Page 247



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Declaration of Interest
	4 Licensing Act 2003 - New premises application - Teamwork's Karting, Langar Airfield, Harby Road, Langar, NG13 9HY
	Appendix A - Premises Licence application (R)
	APPENDIX B - Event Management Plan V3 2019
	Appendix B1 - Alcohol Management v1
	Appendix B3 Counter Terrorism Briefing V1
	Appendix B4 Coach Travel Plan v2
	Appendix B5 Emergency Annoucements v1
	Appendix B6 Emergency & Major Incident Planning v1
	Appendix B12 Medical Plan v2
	Appendix B13 Noise Management Plan v1
	Appendix B15 Security Operations (& Crowd Management) Plan
	Appendix B16 Set it Off H&S policy v1
	Appendix B18 Sign Off to Opening v1
	Appendix B19 Site Plan v3
	Appendix B20 Site Induction & Safety Rules v1-1
	Appendix B21 Traffic Management Plan v1
	APPENDIX D(1) Representation Leics Police_Redacted
	Licensing Act 2003 –
	Representation in respect of New Grant Application – Halloween Festival
	Details of person or body making representation
	Details of premises representation is about

	APPENDIX D(1)(a) Statement Leics Police_
	APPENDIX D(1)(b) Leics Police_Photos 1-9
	APPENDIX D(2) Representation Notts Fire  Rescue (R)
	APPENDIX D(3) Representation-EH (R)
	APPENDIX D(4) Representation (R)
	APPENDIX D(5) Representation (R)
	APPENDIX D(6) Representation (R)
	APPENDIX D(7) Representation (R)
	APPENDIX D(8) Representation (R)
	APPENDIX D(9) Representation (R)
	APPENDIX D(10) Representation VIA EM (Notts & Leics CC) (R)




